
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

   BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

November 2, 2023 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for October 19, 2023

B. Approve the Warrant List for November 2, 2023

C. Approve Clark attending 2024 WateReuse Symposium in Denver, CO. March 11-14, 2024

D. Approve Clark attending AWWA Earmarks and SRFS Impacts and Responses October 18, 2023

E. Approve Agreement with Cintas Corporation No. 2 for Uniform Rental

F. Approve Application of Allocation of Capacity for APN 180-123-01 251 N. San Pedro Road

WildCare Temporary Facility 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through F. 

4:35 PM 

4:40 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:30 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


November 2, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Engineering Department Report – written

3. Draft Wet Weather Flow Mitigation for Land Development Projects – written

4. Administrative Services Department Report – written

5. Topics for the Winter 2024 Newsletter

4. TEMPORARILY INCREASE THE NUMBER OF STAFF POSITIONS

The Board to review the request adding a temporary full-time Admin position.

5. REGIONAL APPLICATION FOR “SB 1383 LOCAL ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM FY 2022-23”

The Board to review participation in a regional application for the SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant through
CalRecycle.

6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4:50 PM 

5:50  PM 

6:10 PM 

6:00 PM 

2



November 2, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

7. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

8. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

9. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: NOVEMBER 16 AND DECEMBER 7,  2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before October 30, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  on November 2, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: October 26, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

6:20PM 

6:25 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:30  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

11/2/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR Cintas Uniform Service.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 2, 2023 

Re: Agreement with Cintas Corporation No. 2 for Uniform Rental 

 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     X    No  (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1. Approve the award of contract, using the Omnia Partners, Prince William County Public 
Schools competitively bid public agency Contract No. R-BB-19002, as referenced in Exhibit 
A of our standard contract, to Cintas Corporation No. 2 (a Nevada corporation with a 
location in Petaluma, CA) for uniform and specialty items rental service in the maximum 
amount of $175,000, for the period of November 2, 2023 through October 27, 2027. 

2. Authorize the General Manager to sign all required documents. 

BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has established uniform requirements for District staff 
assigned to duties which include contact with products determined to be damaging to garments, 
as well as identifying employees as representatives of the District where public engagement 
occurs. There are 19 employee positions required to wear an assigned uniform. A total of 11 
uniforms are assigned to each employee and laundered on a weekly basis by the uniform 
provider. Since 2018 we have contracted the services of uniform rentals through Aramark Uniform 
& Career Apparel, LLC. The term agreement with Aramark expired July 11, 2021 and uniform 
service has been provided on a month-to-month basis since then. 
 
Over the past several years, the District’s needs for this service have changed, and the existing 
vendor’s contract and service capabilities are no longer sufficient. In addition to uniforms, floor 
mats, and cleaning products that Aramark is providing, the Cintas agreement will provide 
protective gear and restroom product supplies currently being obtained from other vendors. 
 
Use of the Omnia Partners Prince William County Public Schools competitively bid public agency 
Contract No. R-BB-19002 is a cost-effective way to procure uniform rental services and specialty 
item rentals. Per District Purchasing Policy F-90, in cases where the General Manager determines 
that certain services may provide better service life, durability, or meet a specific need than other 
services he has the authority to engage the service without multiple quotes.  
 
 
 

Item Number_______2E_______ 

GM Review   ___CP___________ 

19

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR Cintas Uniform Service.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
In collaboration with department managers, and input from the union stewards of Operating 
Engineers Local 3, management has determined that it is in the best interest of the District to 
begin a new agreement with Cintas. Legal counsel was consulted on the proposal. Changes to 
the agreement to align with the termination clause in the Aramark agreement. Proposed 
indemnification language regarding flame resistant clothing was added to the agreement to 
address new clothing options provided by Cintas. The contract term is through the end date of the 
Omnia Partners, Prince William County Public Schools competitively bid public agency Contract 
No. R-BB-19002, October 27, 2027. 
 
The requested contract amount exceeds the General Manager’s authority and requires Board 
approval in accordance with Purchasing Policy F-90. Board approval is required to proceed with 
the new contract in the maximum amount of $175,000 and to authorize the General Manager to 
sign the resulting agreement. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total amount of this contract is $175,000. Each department is responsible for budgeting 
properly for its own expenditures from this agreement. Funds are not encumbered until services 
are requested against the agreement. 
 
The agreement is not a commitment to spend but rather a commitment to pricing up to a limited 
amount, dependent on the operating needs of the District. There is sufficient funding in various 
department operating budgets to cover the costs of the Cintas Corporation agreement in fiscal 
year 2023-24. The per-unit pricing for uniforms is substantially similar to the current rates. The 
costs for protective gear and restroom products are budgeted under safety equipment and 
general office supplies. 
 
Attachments from Exhibit A - Service Providers Services (Scope of Work) 

• Facilities Solution Agreement  

• Omnia Participating Public Agency Terms 

• Cintas Exhibit A Price List  

• Rubber Voltage Glove and PPE Addendum 
 
 
 
 

20



21



22



Exhibit A               
FY 2023-2027

Collections  # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Yellow Ansi Class 3 Button Up Shirt 6 11 $0.858 $56.63
Yellow Ansi Class 2 T-Shirt 6 6 $0.659 $23.72
Navy Carhartt Dungaree Pant 6 11 $0.491 $32.41
Navy Carhartt FR Featherweight Coverall 6 $1.342 $8.05

Operations  # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Grey Carhartt Rugged Flex Shirt 7 11 $0.484 $37.27
Navy Carhartt Dungaree Pant 7 11 $0.491 $37.81
Black Soft Shell Jacket 7 3 $0.841 $17.66
Grey Carhartt T-Shirt 7 6 $0.586 $24.61
Navy Carhartt FR Featherweight Coverall $1.342 $0.00

Lab   # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Blue FR Chem Splash Lab Coat 2 11 $1.913 $42.09
Carhartt Rugged Flex Jean 2 11 $0.491 $10.80

Maintenance  # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Grey Carhartt Rugged Flex Shirt 3 11 $0.484 $15.97
Carhartt FR Carpenter Jean 3 11 $0.643 $21.22
Black Soft Shell Jacket 3 3 $0.841 $7.57
Grey Carhartt T-Shirt 3 6 $0.586 $10.55

Hand Protection  # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
11” Class 00 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Yellow (70) 2 1 $2.467 $4.93
11” Class 00 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Black (35) 2 1 $2.467 $4.93
ArcGuard FR Knit Glove 2 1 $0.982 $1.96
10" Leather Protectors 2 1 $0.877 $1.75
Canvas Glove Bag 2 1 $0.667 $1.33

Head Protection  # of Employees Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Faceshield
Clear Safety Glasses 2 1 $0.117 $0.23
12cal Pure View Faceshield 2 1 $2.912 $5.82
MSA Slotted Hard Hat- White 2 1 $0.515 $1.03
12 cal Balaclava- Navy 2 1 $0.315 $0.63
Hard Hat Faceshield Bag 2 1 $0.306 $0.61
Hood Flashlight with Mounting 2 1 $1.395 $2.79
Cintas Electric Gear Bag 2 1 $0.855 $1.71
Faceshield Hard Hat Bag 2 1 $0.306 $0.61

Floor Mats Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
3x5 Duralite Kitchen Mat 2 $3.042 $6.08
3x5 Traffic Mat 4 $2.339 $9.36
4x6 Traffic Mat 1 $8.320 $8.32
3x10 Traffic Mat 4 $9.360 $37.44
4x6 Logo Mat 1 $7.280 $7.28
3x5 Active Scraper Mat 4 $3.640 $14.56
4x6 Active Scraper Mat 1 $4.731 $4.73

Cleaning Products Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Terry Towel 25 $0.146 $3.65

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

This is an Estimate based on standard Service Agreement Terms & Conditions. Actual usage may vary. 

23



Terry Towel Lost Replacement 3% $2.132 $2.13
Microfiber Towel 50 $0.172 $8.60
Microfiber Towel Lost Replacement 3% $1.328 $2.66
Shop Towel 200 $0.140 $28.00
Shop Towel Lost Replacement 8% $0.465 $7.44
Blue Terry Towel 25 $0.146 $3.65
Blue Terry Towel Lost Replacement 3% $2.660 $2.66

Restroom Products Inventory  Unit Cost Weekly Total
Sig Soap Service 1 $1.523 $0.76
Sig Multifold Paper Towel Case 2,800 sheets/case 1 $33.281 $16.64
Sig Dual TP Case 12 rolls,750 sheets/roll 1 $18.721 $18.72
Sig Air Freshener Service 1 $2.540 $2.54
Manual Restroom Dispensers TBD FREE $0.00
32 Gal Can Liner 20 liners/1.3 mil 1 $7.200 $7.20
44 Gal Can Liner 20 liners/1.3 mil 1 $9.000 $9.00
23 Gal Can Liner 20 liners/.90 mil 1 $5.400 $5.40

Uniform Advantage 467 $0.080 $37.36
Premium Uniform Advantage 55 $0.160 $8.80
Emblem Advantage 522 $0.060 $31.32
Prep Advantage 324 $0.050 $16.20

Service Charge FREE $0.00

Estimated Total Weekly Spend $675.22

CINTAS does not perferm any projects to deem a Waiver or be considered a Prevailing Wage Project.

Service Guarantee: Company guarantees to 
deliver the highest quality textile rental service at 
all times. Any complaints about the quality of the 
service which have not been resolved in the 
normal course of business must be sent by 
registered letter to Company's General Manager. If 
Company then fails to resolve any material 
complaint in a reasonable period of time, 
Customer may terminate this agreement provided 
all rental items are paid for at the then current 
replacement values or returned to Company in 

24



RUBBER VOLTAGE GLOVE AND PPE ADDENDUM 

This Rubber Voltage Gloves (“Gloves”) and additional Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”) Addendum 

(“Addendum”), dated  between Cintas Corporation, including its subsidiaries and affiliates 

(“Company”) and  (“Customer”), amends the existing Specialty Apparel Rental Service 

Agreement between Company and Customer dated  (“Agreement”) as follows: 

1. Customer Agrees to a rental service program for Gloves and additional PPE from Company in the
quantities and prices set forth on Schedule A to this Addendum.

2. Customer acknowledges that its rental service program for Gloves and additional PPE is subject to
the terms and conditions contained herein, in addition to the terms and conditions provided in the Agreement.
Except as otherwise set forth in this addendum, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in
full force and effect.  Any capitalized term used herein and not defined will have the meaning ascribed to such
term in the Agreement. If any of the terms of this Addendum conflict with the terms of the Agreement, the
terms of this Addendum will control.

3. Customer assumes all risks and agrees it bears sole responsibility for selecting the Gloves and
additional PPE and determining whether such items are appropriate for use by its employees and agents in
their applicable work environment(s). CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT COMPANY HAS MADE NO
REPRESENTATION WHETHER THE GLOVES OR ADDITIONAL PPE CONSTITUTE APPROPRIATE
PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT FOR THE ENVIRONMENT(S) TO WHICH CUSTOMER’S
EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS MAY BE EXPOSED OR AS TO THE GLOVES’ OR ADDITIONAL PPE’S ABILITY
TO PROTECT USERS FROM INJURY OR DEATH. COMPANY MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE USEFUL LIFE OF THE GLOVES OR ADDITIONAL PPE, THAT
THE GLOVES OR ADDITIONAL PPE HAVE BEEN TESTED OR CERTIFIED, OR THAT THE GLOVES OR
ADDITIONAL PPE WILL PASS ANY SAFETY, SPECIFICATION, OR CERTIFICATION TESTS. COMPANY
DOES NOT WARRANT THE GLOVES OR ADDITIONAL PPE WILL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF ANY SAFETY CODE OR REGULATION OF ANY FEDERAL, STATE, MUNICIPALITY OR OTHER
JURISDICTION.  THE GLOVES AND ADDITIONAL PPPE ARE SOLD AS IS. ALL WARRANTIES WHICH
MAY ARISE BY IMPLICATION OF LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, OR USAGE OF TRADE (INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE) ARE EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED. No agent, employee or representative of Company has authority
to make any binding representation, affirmation of fact, or warranty (expressed or implied) with respect to the
Gloves or additional PPE.  Customer acknowledges that compliance with any and all OSHA or other safety
regulations, including but not limited to satisfying the testing requirements under 29 CFR § 1910.137, is the
sole responsibility of Customer.

4. Customer releases Company from any and all liability that results or may result from the use of the
Gloves and additional PPE, including but not limited to any alleged failure of the Gloves and additional PPE
to provide protection against electricity, fire, and/or heat. Customer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless Company from any claims and damages associated with the Agreement or this Addendum or
resulting from Customer’s or any other third party’s use of the Gloves and additional PPE, including the
negligence or other fault of Company.  For any claims brought by employees of Customer, Customer
expressly waives its immunity under applicable state workers compensation statutes.

5. Customer has ordered from Company Gloves and additional PPE rental service requiring items that
may not be standard to Company's normal rental product line. Those non-standard products will be
designated as such in Schedule A in this exhibit. In the event the Customer deletes a non-standard product,
alters the design of the non-standard product, fails to renew the Agreement, or terminates the Agreement for

25



any reason, the Customer agrees to buy back all remaining non-standard products allocated to Customer that 
the Company has in service and out of service at the then current Loss/Damage Replacement Values. 

The Customer agrees that if at any time during the term of this Agreement, a reduction in employment of 20% 
or more in any twelve (12) month period results in the Company having an excessive out of service inventory 
of non-standard garments, the Customer agrees to purchase at the then current Loss/Damage Replacement 
Value a sufficient number of out of service non-standard Gloves and additional PPE as the Company shall 
determine to relieve the Company of its excess out of service inventory.  

SCHEDULE A 

QUANTITIES/PRICES 

Hand & Head Protection Program Options 

Quantity 
Cintas Item 

Number Hand Protection Program 

 Weekly 
Enhanced 

Care/Lease 
Rate 

LR/Buyback 
Rates 

869320700 11" Class 00 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Yellow $2.  $5 .2  
869320350 11" Class 00 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Black $2.1  $5 .  
754910300 ARC Guard FR Knit Glove $0.8  $2  
869380000 10” Leather Protectors $0.7  $21.  
601960600 Canvas Glove Bag $0.5  $21.  

Sizes Available 8-12
WEEKLY Total 

Optional Hand Protection Items 

869320150 11" Class 00 Rubber Insulating Gloves – Red $5
869330700 11' Class 0 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Yellow $2.  $6
869330350 11' Class 0 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Black $2.  $6
869330150 11' Class 0 Rubber Insulating Gloves – Red $2.  $6  

 14' Class 2 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Yellow $4.  $12  
869350350 14' Class 2 Rubber Insulating Gloves - Black  $4.  $12  
869350150 14' Class 2 Rubber Insulating Gloves – Red  $4.  $12  
869390000 12' Leather Protectors $0.  $24.  

Increased Glove Testing Frequency (per set) $1.0  

Head Protection Program
601940000 Clear Safety Glass $0.10 $4.0  
745030300 12cal PureView Faceshield  $2.  $10  
745010000 MSA Slotted Hard Hat - White  $0.4  $21.  
823370200 12cal Balaclava - NAVY  $0.3  $17. 0 
668940000 Hard Hat/Face Shield Knit Bag  $0.3  $15.  
744370260 Electric Gear Bag  $0.7  $30.  

WEEKLY Total 

$ 5 

26



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: November 2, 2023 
Re: Application for Allocation of Capacity for APN 180-123-01, 251 N. San Pedro Rd 

WildCare Temporary Facility 
Item Type:  Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable        X     . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the issuance of a Will Serve Letter to WildCare Temporary Facility located at 
251 North San Pedro Road. 

BACKGROUND 
The project consists of constructing a temporary facility for WildCare in the back of the Old 
Gallinas School. The temporary facility includes three portable trailers, three small sheds, and 
animal caging that would allow WildCare to operate continuously during construction of new 
facilities at its existing San Rafael location outside of District jurisdiction. WildCare anticipates 
operating at the temporary location starting January 2024 for a duration of up to three years. 

WildCare is a non-profit animal care and treatment facility in San Rafael. In addition to regular 
operations, the temporary facility will provide environmental education programming for students 
in the San Rafael City Elementary School District, such as hands-on interaction with animals, 
educational presentations, and field trips. 

The Central Marin Sanitation Agency (CMSA) has reviewed the project and determined that an 
industrial wastewater discharge permit is not required for the facility. District staff has reviewed 
the plans and a one-time connection fee of $7,771 has been assessed for the addition of 19 
plumbing fixture units (PFUs) based on the information provided. 

Potential Access Issues to Impacted Sewer Facilities: None, only sewer lateral work is 
proposed. 

Additional Flow Contribution: Negligible. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

Item Number____2F______________ 
GM Review   ____CP______________ 

27

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Connection fee revenue of $7,771. 
 
 

 

 
Figure 1. Location Map 

28



 
 

1 

101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

Date:    November 2, 2023 
 
Property Owner(s):  San Rafael City Elementary School District dba San Rafael City Schools 
 
Property Owner Address: 310 Nova Albion Way 
    San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Applicant:   WildCare 
        
Project Name:   WildCare Temporary Facility 
    
Project Address:  251 North San Pedro Rd 
    San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Project APN:   APN 180-123-01 
 
Re: Will–Serve Letter 
 
You have requested a Will–Serve Letter from the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) at the 
November 2, 2023 Board Meeting. 
 
Subject to the terms and conditions in this letter, District will serve the project with an additional 19 
Plumbing Fixture Units (PFU). This letter may be used to submit to another local agency to satisfy a 
condition for either tentative subdivision map approval or any other permit approval. 
 
This letter is contingent upon the satisfaction of the conditional requirement to address any 
corrective actions in the sanitary sewer improvement components of the project and fulfill 
connection fee obligation before the District signing off on the final inspection. 
 
The standard terms and conditions of approval are as follows: 
Initial Item Condition of Approval 
 1 Applicant shall pay for the facility capacity fee (new connection fee) in accordance 

with District ordinances and policies.  Note payment date and amount obligations. 
 2 Applicant agrees to abide by all conditions of approval of the Board of Directors 

and District staff. 
 3 This Will-Serve approval terminates three (3) years from the Board meeting date 

unless all building permits have been issued for the project. 
 4 Prior to the connection of any sewer lateral, you must contact the District for the 

sewer lateral inspection permit and the application is available on District website. 
A lateral tie-in inspection is required before any lateral can be backfilled. 

 5 After the sewer lateral inspection is completed and the connection is verified, the 
project will be added to the sewer user charge and will receive a charge for this 
service annually. 

 6 Applicant shall reimburse the District for all plan review, field verification before 
and after construction, and inspection fees accrued associated with this project. 

 
  

29



LGVSD Will Serve Letter 
WildCare Temporary Facility 
251 North San Pedro Rd 

2 
101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

The Connection Fee approved by the Board is as follows: 
Connection Fee for 19 PFU at $409/PFU:      $       7,771.00 
Application Fee:    $          500.00 (paid) 
Engineering Review and Inspection Fees:    $             TBD*    
Total Fee:    $        8,271.00 
Outstanding Balance:     $        7,771.00 
(* - See Item 6 above.) 
 

The connection fee may be adjusted based on field verification of the actual number of additional PFU. 
 
The District ordinance provides for payment of the Connection Fee over a two-year period according to 
the following: 
 

1. 10% of the Connection Fee is due within thirty days of Board approval of final plans and 
specifications. 

2. 40% of the Connection Fee is due within one year, November 2, 2024; or upon the date of 
building permit issuance, whichever occurs first. 

3. 50% of the Connection Fee is due within two years, November 2, 2025; or upon the date of 
building permit issuance, whichever occurs first. 

 
Please remit $7,771 and make the check payable to Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Note that if the 
payment schedule as above is not followed, you risk losing your allocation. 
 
By issuing this Will-Serve Letter, District is not incurring any liability of any nature, including but not 
limited to mandate, damages, or injunctive relief. District is making no representation to the applicant nor 
waiving any rights it has under any applicable State or Federal law.  In the event there is any court-
imposed moratorium on District, a connection to the District system may not occur.  In the event any 
government agency imposes a moratorium on District, a connection to the District system may not occur.  
In the event there is not sufficient capacity, a connection to the District system may not occur. 
 
If connection has not been made within three years, the allocation will be terminated without prejudice.  
Upon request, you will receive a refund of 90% of the above fees and you will be able to re-apply for an 
allocation at the fee rate then prevailing.  Please sign and date the original of this letter and return it to the 
District office within 10 days.  The copy is for your records. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Michael P. Cortez, PE 
District Engineer 
 
 
AGREED: 
 
_____________________________________________________ Date:_________________________ 
Project Applicant Signature 
 
Cc: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 

30



 

 
 

 

11/2/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: November 2, 2023 
Re: Draft Wet Weather Flow Mitigation for Land Development Projects 
Item Type: Consent       Action        Information     X Other  . 
Standard Contract:    Yes        No   X (See attached) Not Applicable    . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
For Board review. 

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Element for the planning period of 2023-2031 of the City of San Rafael General Plan 
2040 and County of Marin Countywide Plan 2007 (amended 2023) indicate a Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation (RHNA) responsibility within the District jurisdiction as follows: 

Jurisdiction Sites Inventory Within LGVSD Total RHNA Needs 
Theoretical Realistic 

City of San Rafael 3,206 (99.6%) 1,781 (55.3%) 3,220 
County of Marin 1,160 (32.5%) 3,569 

In addition to RHNA requirements, the California Health and Safety Code requires that cities and 
counties develop a plan that incentivizes and promotes the creation of Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADUs), which cumulatively add sanitary sewer flows. 

In anticipation of increased sewer flows induced by new land development projects and ADUs, 
the District hired Hazen and Sawyer in July 2022 to develop a Collection System Hydraulic Model 
(CSHM) to evaluate capacity limitations during wet weather events. The objective is to better plan 
for Capital Improvement Projects that would ensure sufficient long-term capacity for current 
ratepayers, and at the same time assist the City and County in meeting their housing 
responsibilities by quantifying developer contribution of necessary collection system upgrades. As 
noted in the above table, 55.3% (realistic) to 99.6% (theoretical) of the City and 32.5% of the 
County total RHNA needs lie within LGVSD jurisdiction. 

Another objective of the CSHM is to verify results of the improvements outlined in the 2008 Sewer 
System Management Plan. Since 2011, the District completed major sewer upgrades in Lucas 
Valley, St Vincent’s, Lower Marinwood, Terra Linda, and other locations to address known system 
deficiencies while increasing capacity to accommodate land development projects in previous 
cycles of City and County housing elements, which have increased significantly in the last few 
years due to State mandates. 

Item Number____3.3____________ 
GM Review   __CP______________ 

39

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
The CSHM is essentially complete. This enabled District staff to calculate flow contributions and 
determine appropriate developer upgrade responsibilities for major land development projects, 
such as 245 Nova Albion, Northgate Mall, and Los Gamos Apartments, all of which are under 
different stages of city permitting process and awaiting the issuance of a District Will Serve Letter 
subject to finalizing a developer agreement. 
 
The attached draft resolution would allow developers to pay a proportionate share of wet weather 
flow mitigation by contributing towards an inflow and infiltration (I&I) reduction project in lieu of 
sewer upsizing and facilities upgrade outlined in the current ordinance. The methodology is 
identical to a process adopted by Napa Sanitary District to address wet weather deficiencies 
caused by new land development projects. 
 
Attached with the draft resolution are the following: 
 

1. Exhibit A – Sites Inventory from City of San Rafael 2023-2031 Housing Element 
2. Exhibit B – Sites Inventory from County of Marin 2023-2031 Housing Element 
3. Exhibit C – Sample Calculation of Developer Contribution 

 
District staff discussed the details of Wet Weather Mitigation including the draft resolution with the 
Development Ad Hoc Committee on July 31 and October 12, 2023. After incorporating comments 
to be received at the November 2nd Board Meeting, staff will send the draft resolution to the 
County and City for their information. A final version of the resolution will be presented for Board 
adoption on November 16, 2023. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On July 6, 2023, the District Board adopted Ordinance No. 193, Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance 
Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main Extensions to include sewer capacity upgrades 
as a responsibility of the owner of the parcel or tract of land, and that the District reserves the 
right to perform the work and bill the owner for the cost by proportionality analysis through a 
reimbursement agreement.  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

40



 

Resolution No. 2023-XXXX  Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION No. 2023-XXXX 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY ALLOWING INFLOW AND INFILTRATION 
REDUCTION PROJECT AS A WET WEATHER FLOW MITIGATION OPTION FOR NEW 

LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the 6th Cycle (2023-2031) Housing Element of the City of San Rafael General Plan 
2040 created additional sites for multifamily housing by allowing more housing in commercial areas at 
densities that would make affordable housing feasible, as shown in Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 6th Cycle (2023-2031) Housing Element of the County of Marin Countywide 

Plan 2007, as amended on January 24, 2023, promoted the need for affordable units and housing 
types besides single family residential units, as shown in Exhibit B; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Health and Safety Code Section 65583(c)(7) require that cities and 

counties develop a plan that incentivizes and promotes the creation of Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADUs) as part of the Housing Elements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the number of proposed developments and ADUs outlined in both city and county 

housing elements would impact existing sanitary sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force 
mains within the District service area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District had essentially completed the recommended collection system 

improvements outlined in the 2008 Sewer System Management Plan (District de facto Master Plan) that 
preceded the latest state housing mandates; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District completed a Collection System Hydraulic Model (CSHM) to evaluate 

potential system capacity deficiencies from new discharges to the collection system during wet weather 
events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CSHM identified portions of the existing collection system that have capacity 

deficiencies during wet weather flow conditions directly related to inflow and infiltration (I&I); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CSHM recommends I&I reduction and/or pipeline capacity upsizing to address 

these capacity deficiencies during wet weather flow conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the I&I reduction and/or pipeline capacity upsizing recommendations will be 

incorporated into the future District Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) with a target planning 
period through 2040; and 

 
WHEREAS, the development projects could request sewer service that were not anticipated or 

are larger than the growth projections in the two general plans and IWMP; and 
 
WHEREAS, such a development project requesting sewer service could be located within the 

same subbasin or upstream of sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains that were 
identified as lacking sufficient wet weather capacity during the 10-year design storm in the CSHM; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is possible to create adequate wet weather capacity in sewer mains, trunk lines, 

pump stations, and/or force mains by removing the ability for I&I to enter the collection system within 
the same subbasin or upstream of a development project by rehabilitating the sewer system; and 
 

41



 

Resolution No. 2023-XXXX  Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors, by this Resolution, 
desires to adopt a policy to provide direction to staff for future development projects that are beyond 
anticipated projections and are within the same subbasin or upstream of sewer mains, trunk lines, 
pump stations, and/or force mains that lack sufficient wet weather capacity. 
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Board of 
Directors, hereby authorizes and directs the implementation of the following policy for future 
development projects that are beyond planning projections and are within the same subbasin or 
upstream of sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains with wet weather capacity 
deficiencies: 
 

1. Circumstances under Which Staff May Consider an I&I Reduction Project: 
 

a. The proposed development can be considered if they are located inside the District's 
boundary; and  
 

b. The proposed development is upstream of sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, 
and/or force mains identified in the CSHM that lacks sufficient wet weather capacity. 

 
2. Requirements for an I&I Reduction Project 

 
a. An I&I reduction project must achieve a total peak wet weather flow rate reduction 

greater than the incremental increase from the proposed development for two primary 
reasons: 
 

i. Depending on the location and type of I&I rehabilitation work, collection system 
flows from that location could be attenuated prior to reaching the portion of the 
sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains impacted by the 
incremental flow increase; and 
 

ii. The rehabilitated and/or replaced portions of the existing sewer collection system 
will degrade over time, which can result in a future increase in I&I at those 
locations. 

 
As such, the District requires a 2:1 mitigation ratio for an upstream I&I reduction project. 

 
b. An I&I reduction project must be located within the same subbasin or upstream of the 

sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains where flows are projected to 
be greater than capacity. The developer shall pay for the District to install flow monitors 
in the collection system immediately upstream of the impacted sewer mains, trunk lines, 
pump stations, and/or force mains during the wet weather seasons before and after the 
I&I reduction project is constructed, including data interpretation and hydraulic model 
recalibration by a third-party consultant if necessary. 

 
c. An I&I reduction project shall completely rehabilitate the public sewer system between 

manholes. The public sewer system includes mains, public laterals, and manholes. 
 

3. Developer Options 
 

a. The developer may contribute funds to a planned District capital project if the project 
meets the above requirements. The estimated developer contribution shall be calculated 
by multiplying the estimated total project cost by the development's estimated peak wet 
weather flow and dividing by the measured I&I reduction of the planned District capital 
project as shown in the sample calculation in Exhibit C.  

42



 

Resolution No. 2023-XXXX  Page 3 of 4 

 
i. If the developer contribution calculated based on the actual bid price is within 5% 

of the estimated developer contribution, the developer obligation on I&I reduction 
is deemed complete and the District may proceed with the project without further 
consultation. 
 

ii. If the developer contribution calculated based on the actual bid price exceeds the 
estimated developer contribution by more than 5%:  

 
1) The District will meet and confer with the developer over the cost and 

each party will retain its right to re-evaluate its decision to proceed with 
the project. 
 

2) Upon project completion, the District will furnish the developer with 
detailed accounting of the actual cost including cost of any change 
orders.  

 
3) The District will reimburse any overages or collect additional funds based 

on the final I&I reduction project cost. 
 

b. If the District does not have a planned project, the Developer shall enter into an 
agreement with the District to fund all costs to design and construct an I&I reduction 
project. District staff will select and manage a design consultant who will prepare 
construction documents. The project will be bid in accordance with District procedures. 
Depending on the scale of the project, District staff or a consultant will manage and 
inspect the construction of the I&I reduction project. 

 
c. If the measured I&I reduction exceeds the amount required for the development project, 

the sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains will effectively have 
additional wet weather capacity to support other upstream development. The developer 
shall have the option to apply the excess capacity to another project that is upstream of 
the under-capacity sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations, and/or force mains for a 
period of 10 years after the completion of the I&I reduction project. The developer is 
allowed to transfer the excess capacity to another developer's project as long as the sale 
of excess capacity is based solely on the proportional actual direct cost of the I&I project 
that created the capacity. The District must agree to the transfer in writing prior to the 
transfer, or the transfer will not be recognized by the District. The 10-year period shall 
not be extended if the capacity is transferred to another developer. 

 
*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

        I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 

passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, 

California, at a meeting thereof held on __________________, by the following vote of the members 

thereof: 

AYES, and in the favor thereof, Members:  

NOES, Members:  

 ABSENT, Members:   

 ABSTAIN, Members: 

 

43



 

Resolution No. 2023-XXXX  Page 4 of 4 

____________________________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
APPROVED: 
          (seal) 
 
____________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President 

44



Prepared by:  LGVSD Staff 

Date:  10/23/2023

Theorectical  Realistic

E‐5 145 & 155 N Redwood Dr 89 62

E‐6 30 Smith Ranch Rd 62 50

A‐1 Los Gamos Dr 247 192

B‐4 160 Mitchell Blvd 56 18

E‐2 900 Las Gallinas Ave 21 17

A‐8 Northgate Walk 301 136

D‐7 245 Nova Albion Wy 164 97

B‐3* Northgate Mall 1,905 907

E‐10 401 Merrydale Rd 39 32

D‐13 3501 Civic Center Dr 48 80

E‐9 380 Merrydale Rd 78 62

A‐7 350 Merrydale Rd 99 45

E‐13** 3765 & 3769 Redwood Hwy 29 23

D‐12 25 Golden Hinde Blvd 24 20

E‐19 100 El Prado Ave 13 12

D‐11 159 Merrydale Rd 19 16

D‐10 50 Merrydale Rd 12 12

Total: 3,206 1,781

Percentage of Total City RHNA Needs Within LGVSD: 99.6% 55.3%

** ‐ Incorrectly noted as E‐14 on the San Rafael Housing Opportunity Sites Map.

* ‐ Project Concept 2025 (retail space plus 965 multi‐family units) and Project Concept 2040

     (retail space plus 1374 multi‐family units) for Northgate Mall Redevelopment.

Exhibit A 
Sites Inventory from City of San Rafael 2023‐2031 Housing Element

3,220

Sites Inventory Within LGVSD

City of San Rafael

ID # Address

Total RHNA needs within City Jurisdiction:   

45



HOUSING SITE SUMMARY TABLE

Site Category Lower Moderate
Above 

Moderate TOTAL
Development Pipeline 196            4                     582                   782          
Proposed but not Entitled 114            134                927                   1,175      
Low/Medium Density Residentially Zoned 3                 88                   56                     147          
High Density Residentially Zoned 336            82                   42                     460          
Mixed Use Sites Outside of Downtown 353            57                   74                     484          
Downtown Mixed Use Sites 611            288                711                   1,610      
TOTAL 1,613         653                2,392                4,658      
RHNA 1,349         521                1,350                3,220      
Surplus Capacity 264           132               1,042               1,438     
Buffer 20% 25%

Income Group

46

pquinn
Text Box
(from City of San Rafael 2023-2031 Housing Element)



2023-2031 HOUSING ELEMENT  ADOPTED MAY 15, 2023 
 

 

Housing Opportunity Sites and Resources  Page 4-28 

Figure 4-1, continued 

 

 

  

Numbered shapes correspond to Housing 

Opportunity Sites.  See Appendix B for full list. 

1” = 1,900’ 

47

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
Northgate Mall

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Callout
401 Merrydale Rd

pquinn
Polygon

IHuang
Text Box
145 & 155 N Redwood Dr

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
900 Las Gallinas Ave

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
160 Mitchell Blvd

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
Los Gamos Dr

IHuang
Text Box
Northgate Walk

IHuang
Text Box
3501 Civic Center Dr

IHuang
Text Box
245 Nova Albion Wy

pquinn
Callout
380 Merrydale Rd

pquinn
Callout
350 Merrydale Rd

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
30 Smith Ranch Rd



2023-2031 HOUSING ELEMENT  ADOPTED MAY 15, 2023 
 

 

Housing Opportunity Sites and Resources  Page 4-29 

Figure 4-1, continued 

  

1” = 1,700’ 

Numbered shapes correspond to Housing 

Opportunity Sites.  See Appendix B for full list. 

48

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
50 Merrydale Rd

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
3765 & 3769 Redwood Hwy

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
159 Merrydale Rd

IHuang
Text Box
25 Golden Hinde Blvd

pquinn
Rectangle

pquinn
Rectangle

IHuang
Text Box
100 El Prado Ave



Prepared by:  LGVSD Staff 

Date:  10/23/2023

Community Sites Inventory Within LGVSD

Lucas Valley 138

Lucas Valley Environs 26

Marinwood 135

Santa Venetia 181

St Vincent's 680

Total: 1,160

Sites Inventory from County of Marin 2023‐2031 Housing Element

Exhibit B 

Percentage of Total County 

RHNA Needs Within LGVSD: 32.5%

County of Marin

Total RHNA Needs Within 

County Jurisdiction: 3,569

49



2023-2031 Housing Element 

204  Marin Countywide Plan 

Table H-4.5: Remaining Need After Credit and ADU Units 

  Housing Units by RHNA Income Categories 
Total 

  Very Low Low Moderate Above 
Moderate 

RHNA 1,100   634  512 1323 3,569  

Approved/Entitled (Credits) 39 164 115 107 425 

Accessory Dwelling Units 84 84 84 28 280  

Total Credits + ADU 123 248 199 135 705  

Remaining Need  977  386   313   1,188   2,864  

Sites Inventory 

Government Code Section 65583.2(c) requires that local jurisdictions determine their 
realistic capacity for new housing growth by means of a parcel-level analysis of land 
resources with the potential to accommodate residential uses. The analysis of potential 
to accommodate new housing growth considered physical and regulatory constraints, 
including: lot area and configuration, environmental factors (e.g. slope, sensitive habitat, 
flood risk), allowable density, and other development standards such as parking 
requirements and building height limits. 

The following summarizes the methodology to identify available sites with near-term 
development potential pursuant to State adequate sites standards and to the calculate 
the potential housing units for the Marin County 6th Cycle Housing Element is found in 
Appendix C. The County identified six types of sites and assessed their suitability for 
development as described below.  Figure H-4.2 illustrates the general location of these 
sites.  Detailed sites information is included in Appendix C: Sites Inventory. 

 

  

50

mcortez
Rectangle



2023-2031 Housing Element 

210  Marin Countywide Plan 

Table H-4.6: Sites Inventory by Community 

Community Lower Moderate Above Moderate Total 
 Almonte   72   -     36   108  

 Blackpoint   -     -     111   111  

 California Park   25   -     85   110  

 Forest Knolls   -     -     10   10  

 Kentfield   130   92   3   225  

 Lagunitas   32   10   4   46  

 Lucas Valley   138   -     -     138  

 Lucas Valley Environs   -     -     26   26  

 Marin City   -     117   75   192  

 Marinwood   125  10   -     135  

 Nicasio   16   -     -     16  

 North Novato   109   38   249   396  

 Olema   20   31   5   56  

 Pt. Reyes Station   149   3   4   156  

 San Geronimo Village   -     15   -     15  

 Santa Venetia   121   13   47   181  

 Sleepy Hollow   70   4   54   128  

 St. Vincent's   440   -     240   680  

 Stinson Beach   -     -     13   13  

 Strawberry   100   8   189   297  

 Tamalpais   20   12   -     32  

 Tomales   44   27   47   118  

 Unincorporated Fairfax   36   -     -     36  

 Woodacre   -     10   -     10  

 SubTotal   1,637   400   1,198   3,235  

Credit Sites 

 Almonte   -     -     10   10  

51



2023-2031 Housing Element 

Marin Countywide Plan  211 

Table H-4.6: Sites Inventory by Community 

Community Lower Moderate Above Moderate Total 

 Bolinas   13   -     -     13  

 California Park   1   -     8   9  

 Marin City   74   -     -     74  

 San Quentin   115   115   -     230  

 Strawberry   -     -     89   89  

 Subtotal   203   115   107   425  

Total   1,840   515   1,305   3,660  
 

The County has a RHNA shortfall of 2,864 units, as shown in Table H-4.2. Table H-4.7 
shows the breakdown of the RHNA sites requiring rezone and not requiring rezone by 
income level.  To accommodate the City’s remaining shortfall RHNA, the County needs 
to rezone 1,349.3 acres (129 parcels) that could allow for potentially 3,210 units. Table 
H-4.8 shows a breakdown of the rezone RHNA units by existing zoning, acreage, 
number of sites, and RHNA units.   

52



Exhibit C 

Sample Calculation of Total Developer Contribution 

 

A. Peak Wet Weather Flow from Development:     0.111 MGD 

(Based on Design Flow multiplied by a peaking factor outlined in 

District Standards, to be prepared by the Developer and approved by the District.) 

 

B. Total Cost of I&I Reduction Project for Entire Upstream Areas:   $2,237,000 

(To be prepared by District Consultant.) 

 

C. Peak Wet Weather Flow for Entire Upstream Areas:     1.40 MGD 

(Basis of Total Cost of I&I Reduction Project based on flow 

monitoring and Collection System Hydraulic Model.) 

 

D. Average Daily Dry Weather Flow for Entire Upstream Areas:     0.32 MGD 

(Dry weather baseline flow from flow monitoring and 

Collection System Hydraulic Model.) 

 

E. Inflow and Infiltration (C minus D):       1.08 MGD 

 

F. Developer Contribution:     

 
0.111 𝑀𝐺𝐷

1.08 𝑀𝐺𝐷
× $2,237,000 = 10.1% × $2,237,000 = $225,937 

 

(The calculated Developer Contribution will be compared to the actual bid price. The District and 

Developer shall mutually agree to proceed based on a bid tolerance percentage outlined in the 

resolution.) 

 

G. Other Fees Related to Calculation of Developer Contribution to be Paid by the Developer: 

1. Flow monitoring during the wet weather seasons before and after the I&I reduction 

project is constructed. 

2. Flow monitoring data interpretation by a 3rd party Consultant.  

3. Collection System Hydraulic Model recalibration by a 3rd party Consultant. 

53



54



55



56



57



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR Winter 2023 Newsletter Topics.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 2, 2023 

Re: Topics for the Winter 2024 Newsletter 
 

Item Type:   Consent         Action    Information   X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff requests that the Board discuss proposed topics for the Winter 2024 Newsletter and select 
topics from the recommended list below. 

BACKGROUND: 
The District publishes newsletters every six (6) months to inform its ratepayers about District 
projects, programs, and other items of interest. Each newsletter typically has one main topic and 
three to four smaller articles. Staff is planning to mail the Winter 2024 Newsletter in January 2024. 
 
An article on the completion of the of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and ribbon cutting 
event is planned for this newsletter. The article and associated photos and graphics are expected 
to take up 1.5 to 2 pages of the newsletter. There will be space for one or two additional articles 
plus informational box items. 
 
Included with this report is a list of past newsletter topics and their publication date. Below is a list 
of items for possible inclusion in the newsletter. 
 

• Completion of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Ribbon Cutting Event 

• Fighting Climate Change Through Organic Waste Diversion – SB 1383 

• Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program 

• LGVSD Website Redesign 

• WateReuse California Awards Program 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION: 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Publication of the newsletter is included in the 2023-24 Budget. 

Item Number_______3.5_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

58

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

10/20/2023

10:45 AM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period

Admin Bldg

Replacement of Operations and Administration Building in 

the Works 2023 Summer

Admin Bldg Dilapidated building needs urgent revamping. 2017 Summer

Admin Bldg Facilities Need Upgrading 2014 Spring

Awards District Wins Finance Award 2014 Spring

Awards LGVSD Awarded Certificate of Excellence for Transparency 2014 Winter

Awards

Awards Recognize Outstanding District Programs and 

Performance 2013 Summer

Awards Awarded Sewer Collection System of the Year… Again! 2011 March

Biogas

Biogas energy recovery system: another step towards 

energy independence. 2018 Winter

Biosolids Biosolids‐Capturing a Resource 2021 Winter

Construction

Major Construction Milestone ‐ Completion of Phase 1: 

Recycled Water Expansion 2021 Fall

Construction Construction Affects Reclamation Area Access 2021 Winter

Construction

Progress Continues on Secondary Treatment Plant 

Upgrade/Recycled Water Expansion Project 2021 Winter

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Fall

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Spring

Construction Possible Road Closure. 2019 Spring

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade 2020 Spring

COVID‐19 Tracking COVID in our Sewers 2021 Winter

District District Evaluates Electric Vehicles to Include in Fleet 2023 Summer

District Welcome Gary Robards, Newest Board Member 2023 Summer

District Welcome Curtis Paxton, New General Manager 2022 Fall

District Newest District Board Member Nearing One Year of Service 2022 Fall

District Kid's Corner ‐ Match the Truck with it's name 2022 Fall

District District Hires Interim General Manager 2022 Spring

District  District Honored for Helping Monitor COVID in Wastewater 2022 Spring

District Careers in Wastewater Management 2021 Fall

District Department Spotlight: Administration and Engineering 2021 Fall

District How Activated Sludge is Used in Wastewater Treatment 2021 Fall

District Introducing Dale McDonald New ASM 2021 Winter

District Department Spotlight: Operations 2021 Winter

District District Administrative/Engineering Office Move. 2019 Fall

District PG&E “Public Safety Power Shutoff” Program. 2019 Fall

District Understanding the Recycled water storage ponds. 2019 Fall

District New Team at LGVSD: New Employees and Board members. 2019 Spring

District LGVSD starting strong in 2018. 2018 Winter

District Chris DeGabriele hired as interim general manager. 2018 Winter

X:\NEWSLETTERS\Master Topics List 2011‐2023 Page 1 of 459



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

10/20/2023

10:45 AM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period

District

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District: 60 Years of Service to 

Marin Residents 2014 Spring

District

LGVSD Workers Go Above and Beyond to Help a District 

Customer in Need 2014 Winter

District District Redesigns Website for Easier Access 2013 Summer

District Mutually Beneficial Partnerships Leverage our Efforts 2020 Spring

District Department Spotlight: Collections Systems 2020 Spring

Drain/Flushing Are they really Flushable. 2019 Spring

Flushing Wipes Clog Pipes 2021 Winter

Flushing Microbeads study under way. 2018 Winter

Flushing

Did I cause a sewer overflow? Be aware of what you put 

down the drain. 2016 Fall

Flushing “Wipe Out” Flushing of Personal Wipes! 2015 Spring

Flushing Wastewater Treatment Complicated by New Contaminants 2014 Fall

Flushing Don’t Use the Drain as a Dump 2014 Fall

Flushing FDA Questions Effectiveness, Safety of Antibacterial Soaps 2014 Spring

Flushing Protect Water Quality: Watch What You Flush 2013 Summer

Flushing Antibacterial Soaps Can Harm the Environment and Wildlife 2013 Summer

Grants Grants Received for Biogas Conversion to Energy 2015 Fall

Grants District Awarded $871,000 Grant for Recycled Water 2011 March

Inflow and Infiltration We Must Reduce Inflow and Infiltration 2012 May

Laterals

Programs Help Offset Your Costs  Later Repair Assistance 

and Low‐income Rate Assistance 2022 Fall

Laterals

Reminder: Sewer Laterals are Property Owner's 

Responsibility 2022 Spring

Laterals Low Cost Funds Available for Lateral Repair/Replacement 2021 Winter

Laterals Always Get Three Quotes Before Performing Work 2016 Fall

Laterals Protect your sewer lateral and prepare for wet winter 2015 Fall

Laterals Roots and Sewer Laterals Don’t Mix Well 2014 Fall

Laterals

What is a Property Easement and Do You Have One on Your 

Property? 2014 Spring

Laterals It’s Time to Have Your Pipes Inspected! 2013 Winter

Laterals Prepare for the Rainy Season 2013 Winter

Laterals

What’s the Best Way to Fix Laterals and How to Make it 

Affordable? 2011 March

Laterals

Damaged Laterals Are Privately Owned but Harm the 

Community 2011 March

Laterals We Are Developing Lateral Inspection and Repair Options 2011 March

Ordinance Sewer Lateral Ordinance. 2019 Fall

Pest Control Keep Mosquitos in Check Around Your Home  2016 Fall

Pest Control Tips for Your Pool, Spa, or Fountain 2015 Fall

X:\NEWSLETTERS\Master Topics List 2011‐2023 Page 2 of 460



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

10/20/2023

10:45 AM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period
Pest Control You Can Help Protect the Bay  2015 Spring

Pest Control Keep Your Pool or Spa Clean — and Protect Waterways 2014 Spring

Pest Control Avoid Using The Toxic Insecticide Permethrin 2012 April

Plant Upgrade Upgraded Treatment Plant Successfully Weathered Storms 2023 Summer

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant Upgrade Nearly Complete 2022 Fall 

Plant Upgrade Current Status of treatment plant upgrade project. 2018 Winter

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant upgrade addresses critical issues. 2017 Summer

Plant Upgrade

District Forced to Upgrade Aging Treatment Plant to Meet 

Regulations 2014 Fall

Plant Upgrade

Upgrades Maintain System Efficiency and Environmental 

Health 2013 Summer

Plant Upgrade LGVSD Launches New Recycled Water Treatment Facility 2013 Winter

Pollution prevention

Join the District in Helping Protect the Environment 

Thermometer Exchange and Battery Recycle Program 2022 Fall

Pollution prevention

Zero Waster Marin We can All do our Part To Achieve Zero 

Waste 2022 Spring

Pollution prevention We Can All Do Our Part to Achieve Zero Waste 2016 Spring

Pollution prevention Thermometer, bulbs and battery exchange 2015 Fall

Pollution prevention Monitoring Helps Keep Mercury Out of the Environment 2020 Spring

Pollution prevention

Help Protect Local Waterways – Tips for your Pool, Spa, or 

Fountain 2020 Spring

Projects District Looks Ahead to Meet Regulatory Requirements 2014 Winter

Projects LGVSD Will Perform Smoke Testing During Summer Months 2013 Summer

Projects Lighting Change Decreases Glare, Saves Money 2012 May

Rates

Sewer Rate Study Will Guide Board Decision on Sewer 

Charges 2023 Summer

Rates

Public Hearing Scheduled on Proposed Sewer Service 

Charge Increase 2023 Summer

Rates Sewer Rate Increase Anticipated 2022 Spring

Rates New Rates and Public Hearing. 2019 Spring

Rates

District Continues to Address Aging Infrastructure, Changes 

in Wastewater Content, and New Regulations 2015 Spring

Rates Next Phase of Critical Upgrades Requires Fee Increases 2015 Spring

Rates Tours, Workshops, and Public Hearing Scheduled 2015 Spring

Rates

Board considers options for sewer rate billing methods: 

variable vs. fixed 2014 Winter

Rates Public Meeting on Proposed Rate Changes 2014 Winter

Reclamation SF Bay Trail Traverses Las Gallinas Reclamation Ponds 2023 Summer

Reclamation

Wildlife Spotlight Facts about the North American River 

Otter 2022 Fall

Reclamation Sharing the Trails at District's Reclamation Area 2022 Spring

X:\NEWSLETTERS\Master Topics List 2011‐2023 Page 3 of 461



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

10/20/2023

10:45 AM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period

Reclamation

Trails, Ponds, Wildlife and Views: Reclamation is for all to 

Enjoy 2021 Fall

Reclamation Miller Creek dredging resumes. 2017 Summer

Reclamation River Otters Provide Student Biologist with Field Experience 2016 Fall

Reclamation Miller Creek Dredging Begun 2016 Fall

Reclamation Parking at reclamation area 2015 Fall

Reclamation Hiking, Biking, Views on Bayside Trails 2014 Fall

Reclamation LGVSD Trails Offer Hiking, Biking, Views and More 2013 Winter

Reclamation Growing Problem: Goose Population Boom 2012 May

Recycled Water Recycled Water ‐ Even More Important During Drought 2022 Spring

Recycled Water Do Your Part to Save Water 2021 Fall

Recycled Water

Potable reuse is the addition of advanced purified water, 

either indirectly or directly, into a drinking water system. 2017 Summer

Recycled Water

All water is recycled. Don’t judge water by its history but by 

its quality. 2017 Summer

Recycled water

Advanced Purified Recycled Water – the New Drought Proof 

Water Supply 2016 Spring

Recycled Water Recycled Water: A Track Record for Safety 2013 Winter

Recycled Water Recycled Water Project Under way 2012 May

Refuse Mobile App for Waste/Recycling Collection 2021 Fall

Refuse

Free Service: bulky item removal. Plus, curbside clean‐up 

coming in the fall. 2017 Summer

Refuse Compost giveaway 2015 Fall

Refuse Residential food waste composting test a success 2011 March

X:\NEWSLETTERS\Master Topics List 2011‐2023 Page 4 of 462



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR Increase Staff Positions.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 2, 2023 

Re: Temporarily Increase the Number of Staff Positions 

Item Type:   Consent    Action       X   Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1. Authorize the increase in the number of full-time equivalent staff positions from thirty-one 

to thirty-two through January 31, 2024. 

2. Direct the General Manager to negotiate and execute an Employment Agreement with a 

qualified candidate to fill the Administrative Financial Specialist position and report back 

to the Board. 

 
BACKGROUND   
Administrative Financial Specialist Amy Schultz has announced her upcoming retirement from 
public service. Her last day with the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District will be January 18, 2024. 
 
The Administrative Financial Specialist is the sole position that provides a variety of specialized 
and technical duties in support of the District’s accounting, finance, audit and human resources 
program. The position is an unrepresented confidential employee contract position. 
 
We have a unique opportunity to have Amy participate in training of her replacement.  We are 
thankful for her willingness to participate in this transition. Temporarily increasing the number of 
staff positions to thirty-two will provide:  
 

• A smoother transfer of institutional knowledge  

• Organizational stability 

• Uninterrupted service 
 
As part of the budget control and oversight process, Board Policy F-40 gives the Board exclusive 
authority to increase the number of authorized staff positions. The General Manager has the 
authority to negotiate and execute an Employment Agreement with the new employee under 
Board Policy B-80, Authority Over Personnel. 
 
It is anticipated that the District would have up to 1 month of cross-training opportunity if the 
recruitment is carried out quickly and recruitment is successful.  
 
 

Item Number_______4_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

63

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR Increase Staff Positions.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The short-term additional salary and benefit expense is estimated to be under $10,000.  
However, cost savings are anticipated over the remainder of the fiscal year as it is likely that the 
new employee will start at a lower salary step than the current employee. No budget adjustment 
is needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

64



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 2, 2023 

Re: Regional Application for “SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program FY 2022-23” 
 

Item Type:   Consent   Action     X   Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes         No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the General Manager to execute a Letter of Authorization to participate in a regional 
application for the SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant through CalRecycle. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The  Department  of  Resources  Recycling  and  Recovery  (CalRecycle) has announced their 
second  SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program pursuant to Chapter 395, Statutes of 2016.  
This non-competitive grant program will provide grant funding to local jurisdictions to assist with 
the implementation of regulation requirements associated with SB 1383. The District applied for 
and was awarded $40,389 in the first round of the grant program in May 2022, a two-year term 
ending on May 2, 2024. 
 
The non-competitive grant program provides an additional $90,000,000 of funding to local 
jurisdictions to assist with the continued implementation of regulation requirements associated 
with SB 1383. The grant term will be from the date of award, tentatively scheduled for March 
2024, to April 1, 2026. As a special district that provides solid waste collection services, through 
our franchisee Marin Sanitary Service, our District is an eligible applicant. Our District can apply 
for the grant as an individual applicant or participate in a regional application. The base award to 
our District is $75,000 with an additional distribution of remaining unallocated funds to eligible 
entities based on a per capita calculation. 
 
Management is supportive of the regional application approach as it is in alignment with how 
Zero Waste Marin (ZWM)  is pursuing the next round of SB 1383 funding with its JPA members.  
A lead participant is required, and Tamalpais Community Service District is willing to be the lead 
agency for the regional grant for eligible special districts. The additional agencies who expressed 
support for the regional application are Almonte Sanitary District, Bolinas Community Public 
Utility District, Homestead Valley Sanitary District, and Strawberry Recreation District.  Alto 
Sanitary District, Marin City Community Services District, and Stinson Beach County Water 
District may also participate in the regional grant but, as of the time of writing, we have yet to 
receive a response back. 
  
 
 

Item Number_____5_________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

65

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\ASR SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
The regional grant application would be prepared by R3 Consulting Group. One key component 
of the grant would be to pay for a consultant to administer the grant on behalf of the regional 
participants. 
 
Development of the grant proposal will be completed before the application deadline of 
November 15, 2023.  Grant funding can be use towards the following programs, including but 
not limited to: 
 
• Capacity Planning 
• Collection 
• Edible Food Recovery 
• Education and outreach (includes organic waste & edible food recovery) 
• Enforcement and Inspection 
• Program Evaluation/Gap Analysis 
• Procurement Requirements 
• Record Keeping 
 
Compliance and enforcement are of a shared concern to ZWM and the special districts in 
unincorporated Marin.  As such, it is anticipated a large portion of the grant will be directed 
towards enforcement program development and management.  
 
A Letter of Authorization is required by Cal Recycle for an agency to participate in a regional 
application. The Board can authorize the General Manager to execute the letter as the District 
has already formally authorized the General Manager and Administrative Services Manager as 
the Signature Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure payment 
from CalRecycle. 
 
If a regional application is submitted, a resolution authorizing the Tamalpais Community 
Services District to submit a SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant regional application and act as 
Lead Agency will be brought back to the Board no later than December 7. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Resolution No. 2022-2237 Authorizing Submittal of Application for Payment Programs and 
Related Authorizations adopted January 20, 2022. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Any grant funding would offset expenses related to implementation of SB 1383 regulatory 
requirements.  Unspent grand funds at the end of the grant term would be returned to 
CalRecycle.   
 
Attachment: 

• Draft Letter of Authorization - SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Regional Application 

66



 

 

 

 

 

November 2, 2023 
 
 
 
 
Subject Line - RE:  Letter of Authorization 
   SB1383 Local Assistance Grant Program 
 
 
As General Manager of Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, I am authorized to 
contractually bind the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Pursuant to this authority, I 
hereby authorize Tamalpais Community Services District to submit a regional 
application and act as Lead Agency on behalf of Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 
 
The Tamalpais Community Services District is hereby authorized to execute all 
documents necessary to implement the project under the SB1383 Local Assistance 
Grant Program beginning with the grant cycle period Fiscal Year 2022-23. 
 
This authorization is effective as long as the Tamalpais Community Services District 
Lead Agency Resolution is in effect.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
 

67



11/2/2023 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other 
Reports 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 FutureSense 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

YEZMAN 
Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Salary 
Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

68



     AGENDA ITEM 7A   
DATE: November 2, 2023  

REVISED 06012021 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________ 

  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference: 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

69



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\11022023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

11/2/2023 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 

Agenda Item 7B

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80


	Agenda 11022023
	1 Public Comment
	2A minutes 10182023
	2B Warrant List 11022023
	2C Clark WateReuse Symposium Request
	2D Clark AWWA Webinar request
	2E Cintas Uniform Service
	Attachment to Cintas ASR  - Exhibit A  -Scope of Work.pdf
	Cintas Price List in Excel.pdf
	Rental Program



	2F Application for Allocation of Capacity for WildCare
	Application for Allocation of Capacity for WildCare
	WildCare 251 N San Pedro Will Serve Letter_draft
	Re: Will–Serve Letter


	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 Engineering Department Report
	3.3 Wet Weather Flow Mitigation for Land Development Projects
	3.4 Administrative Services Dept Report
	3.5 Winter 2023 Newsletter Topics
	4 Increase Staff Positions
	5 SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program
	6 Board Member Reports
	7A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	7B Board Agenda Item Requests
	8 Various Industry Articles



